Greater Cleveland 1240 West 6th Street
Regional Transit Authority Cleveland, Ohio 44113-1302
Phone: 216-566-5100

riderta.com

MEETING NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the following meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority will take place on Tuesday, October 25, 2022 in the
Board Room of the Authority, 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, OH 44113 for consideration of
the listed items and such other items that may properly come before the Board and be acted
upon. This meeting will be live streamed on RTA's Board Page www.RideRTA.com/board via
the meeting date for staff and members of the public. Members of the public may attend in
person.

Based on Centers for Disease Control (“CDC”) guidance to avoid crowded places where you
cannot stay 6 feet away from others and Ohio Department of Public Health advice regarding
congregating and social distancing, as well as RTA’s interest in protecting community and
employee health and safety, RTA Board Room and Meeting Room 1 capacity is limited to thirty-
six (36) people to allow for social distancing. To accommodate members of the public, RTA will
limit the number of staff permitted in the Board Room. All persons entering RTA’s Main Office
Building (“MOB?”) at 1240 West 6™ Street are required to maintain a distance of six feet or more
from other individuals who are not members of their family or household.

As a result of a federal court order on April 18, 2022, the CDC's January 29, 2021 order
requiring masks on public transportation conveyances and at transportation hubs is no longer in
effect. The CDC continues to recommend that people wear masks in indoor public
transportation settings at this time. As a result, GCRTA recommends, but will not require, that

members of the public wear a mask/face covering.

The meeting package will be posted on RTA’s website at (www.riderta.com/board), on RTA’s
Facebook page, and RTA’s Twitter page.

9:00 A M. Board of Trustees — agenda attached.

&:/;/ ,gz&;@*@ﬁg % Q - 4 {f‘f {

i%
India L. Birdsong Terry :
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer

IBT:tab
Attachment



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

AGENDA

RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
Tuesday, October 25, 2022

9:00 a.m.

Call to order
Roll Call
Certification regarding notice of meeting
Approval of the September 20, 2022 Board Meeting minutes
Public comments (2 minutes) on agenda items:

a. In person

b. Phone: 440-276-4600

c. Web form (comments will be forwarded to Board and staff)

Board Governance Committee report

Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee report
e Chair: Ms. Lauren R. Welch

Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee report
e  Chair: Mayor Anthony D. Biasiotta

Audit, Safety Compliance and Real Estate Committee report
e  Chair: Mayor Paul A. Koomar

External and Stakeholder Relations and Advocacy Committee report
e  Chair: Mr. Terence P. Joyce

Community Advisory Committee (CAC)
e Board Liaison: TBD

Ad Hoc Committee reports:

o Ad Hoc Paratransit Committee ~ President Charles P. Lucas, Chair

e Ad Hoc Technology Committee — Ms. Luz Pellot, Chair
Introduction of new employees and announcement of promotions

Introduction of resolutions:

A. 2022-94 — Expressing congratulations to the employees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority who retired during the third quarter
of 2022



RTA Board of Trustees
October 25, 2022

Page 2

B. 2022-95 — Authorizing Contract No. 2022-094 with Vehicle Maintenance

Program for the furnishing of motorcoach filters, as specified and as
required, for a period of two years, in an amount not to exceed
$134,900.00 (General Fund, Fleet Management Department budget)

2022-96 — Removing Sections 642.10 Reduction in Workforce, 642.11
Workforce Accommodation, 642.12 Transitional/Alternative Work and
642.13 Pre-Termination Meeting from the Codified Rules and Regulations
of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority as duplicates of the
Personnel Policies

2022-97 — Authorizing the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
to enter into an option agreement with Flaherty & Collins Development,
LLC, an Indiana Limited Liability Company, for the proposed sale of
property adjacent to the West Boulevard-Cudell Rapid Transit Station,
known as Cuyahoga County Permanent Parcel Number 001-32-012 on
Detroit Avenue, Cleveland, Ohio

15. Secretary-Treasurer's Report:

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

a.

b.

o

g.
h.

General Fund Revenue — status as of September 30, 2022 versus 2021

actuals
General Fund Revenue — status as of September 30, 2022 versus the

2022 budget

Sales & Use Tax Receipts Report budgeted during 2022, actual receipts

through October 2022

Inventory of Treasury Investments as of September 30, 2022

Debt Service Schedule and Status of Bond Retirement Fund (cash basis)
as of September 30, 2022

Summary of Investment Performance, Year to Date through September
30, 2022

Report on Investment Earnings (cash basis) as of September, 2022
Composition of Investment Portfolio as of September 30, 2022

Banking and Financial Relationships as of September 30, 2022

General Manager's Report

President’s Report

Old Business

New Business

a. Proposed 2023 Board and Committee Meeting Schedule

Public comments (2 minutes) on public transit related items:

a.

In person

b. Phone: 440-276-4600



RTA Board of Trustees
October 25, 2022
Page 3

c. Web form (comments will be forwarded to Board and staff)

21. The next regular Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, November 15, 2022
in the Board Room of the Authority, Root-McBride Building, 1240 West Sixth
Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44113. This meeting will be live-streamed on RTA’s
Board page (www.RideRTA.com/board) by clicking the meeting date. The public
is welcome to attend in person.

22. Adjournment



Minutes
RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
9:05 a.m. September 20, 2022
Board Members: Lucas (Chair), Moss (Vice Chair), Koomar, McCall, Pellot, Welch
Not present: Biasiotta, Joyce, Weiss

Staff: Birdsong Terry, Brooks-Williams, Burney, Caver, Dangelo, Dietrich, Feliciano, Fields, Fleig,
Freilich, Garofoli, Gautam, Jones, Kerg, Kirkland, Miller, Mothes, Schipper, Sutula, Talley, Walker-
Minor, Young

Public: Gibbons, Lau, Loh, O’Reilly, Pinkney-Butts, Rodriguez, Ryan
The meeting was called to order at 9:05 a.m. There were six (6) board members present.

It was advised that notice of this meeting have been posted more than twenty-four hours in advance
of the meeting, that the usual notification has been given the news media and other interested
persons, and that all requirements of the Ohio Revised Code and Rules and Bylaws of this Board
regarding notice of meeting have been complied with. President Lucas asked for a moment of silence
for Board member Mayor Biasiotta who recently lost his father.

Minutes

President Lucas stated that the minutes from the August 16, 2022 Special Board Meeting and August
23, 2022 Board Meeting had been previously distributed and reviewed, and asked whether there were
any additions and/or corrections. There were no corrections. The minutes were approved.

Public Comments — Agenda ltems

1. Rev. Pinkney-Butts — The Superior Station is still not fixed. She asked for inclusivity of other
issues in East Cleveland. The E. 79" Street Station is old. She was not present for the
committee report out on the Code Book agenda items. Operators are not getting
communication about the agenda items.

2. Larry Rodriguez — Paratransit scheduling wait times are long. Schedulers hang up on him.
The wait time for dispatchers is 45 minutes to one hour.

3. Chris Stocking — (web form) - Thank you for adding route #35. After NextGen was completed,
parts of the eastside, like East 123rd Street lost service, but #35 has restored this service.
I have two suggestions to improve route #35 at no cost.

1. Right now, #35 runs every 45 minutes, this does not connect well to make transfers at
Windermere where many routes run every 30 minutes.

2. After service cuts and fare increases took effect in August 2016, service south of
Severance in Cleveland Heights was discontinued. This was before the MetroHealth
Cleveland Heights Clinic was opened there. Patients are not able to access this clinic
easily on RTA that live south of Severance.



RTA Board of Trustees
September 20, 2022
Page 2 of 6

I have looked at the #35 schedule and think it could be extended south on Taylor Road to
Chagrin-Lee to improve access to MetroHealth Cleveland Heights. RTA can do this at no
cost by reducing service to hourly. Although hourly service is not ideal, it will create better
bus connections at Windermere and allow better access to Severance. That is a win.
Could you forward this request to Service Management to evaluate and report back to the
board? Thank you for your attention to this matter. Feel free to contact me with any
questions.

Committee Reports

Dr. Caver reported on behalf of Mayor Biasiotta’s Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring
Committee. Mr. Ryan of Western Reserve Coach Sales is present. A paratransit vehicle is outside
for touring. He’s worked with staff on the paratransit bus project. They are a diamond coach dealer.
The coach is built in Kansas. They are a fiberglass honeycomb body manufacturer built on Ford and
Chevrolet chassis. They have experience in the RTA and private sector. Their buses are sold and
distributed nationally. The fiberglass construction has no metal, so it is conducive to Cleveland
winters. You won't see the rust and corrosion. The chassis is lighter for a better ride. They added
the MORryde suspension. The buses will be in next summer.

Mr. Garofoli announced that the next meeting of the Audit Committee to review IA quarterly work is
November 3, 2022.

Community Advisory Committee (CAC)

There was no report from the CAC.

Ad Hoc Committee Reports

There were no reports.

Introduction of New Employees/Promotions

New Hires:

e Linda Powers — Operator
Shirley James — Operator
Dagmar White —~ Operator
Taneesha Gaston — Operator
Ryan Graham - Janitor
George Anderson Jr. — Operator
Andre Dunnican — Janitor

Promotions:

» Ricky Williams Sr. — Service Quality Supervisor
Nicole Campbell — Benefits Specialist
Juliana Schultz — ITS Manager
James Schmidt — Assistant Equipment Manager/Rail
Tonina Campbell — ITS Manager

® o o o

Service Pins — Board of Trustees
¢ Rev. Charles P. Lucas - 5 years
e Karen Gabriel Moss — 10 years
o Valarie J. McCall — 15 years




RTA Board of Trustees
September 20, 2022
Page 3 of 8

Introduction of Resolutions:

A

2022-84 — Authorizing Contract No. 2022-017 with B&C Transit, Inc. to provide a
Consolidated Train Dispatch System replacement in an amount not to exceed $4,000,000.00
(RTA Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department budget), the
adoption of which was moved by Ms. Moss, seconded by Ms. Pellot and approved by
unanimous vote.

2022-85 — Authorizing Contract No. 2022-080 with the Great Lakes Construction Co. for
Project 27Z — Waterfront Line Bridge Rehabilitation, as specified and as required, in an
amount not to exceed $8,481,900.00 (RTA Development Fund, Engineering & Project
Development Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by Ms. Welch,
seconded by Ms. McCall and approved by unanimous vote.

2022-86 — Authorizing Contract No. 2022-081 with Rail Development Group, LLC for the
furnishing of remanufactured switch machines, as specified and as required, for a period of
three years in an amount not to exceed $155,700.00 (RTA Development Fund, Power and
Way Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by Ms. McCall, seconded by
Ms. Pellot and approved by unanimous vote.

2022-87 — Authorizing Contract No. 2022-087 with Perk Company, Inc. for Project 19.41 —
GCRTA pavement repairs, as specified and as required, in an amount not to exceed
$645,000.00 (RTA Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department
budget), the adoption of which was moved by Ms. Pellot, seconded by Mayor Koomar and
approved by unanimous vote.

2022-88 — Authorizing Contract No. 2022-089 with Northeast Battery & Alternator, LLC for
the furnishing of bus batteries, as specified and as required, for a period of two years in an
amount not to exceed $144,117.50 (General Fund, Fleet Management Department budget),
the adoption of which was moved by Ms. Pellot, seconded by Ms. McCall and approved by
unanimous vote.

2022-89 — Authorizing Contract No. 2022-103 with Western Reserve Coach Sales, Inc. for
the purchase of up to 20 Western Reserve Diamond paratransit coaches, as specified, for a
total contract amount not to exceed $2,454,880.00 (RTA Development Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by President Lucas,
seconded by Ms. Welch and approved by unanimous vote.

2022-90 - Authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into an
intergovernmental agreement with the Cleveland Metropolitan School District for student
fares for the 2022-2023 school year and ratifying the issuance of passes and tickets for the
first day(s) of school, the adoption of which was moved by Ms. Moss, seconded by Ms.
Pellot. There were five (5) ayes and one abstention from Ms. Welch. It passes.

2022-91 — Authorizing a Memorandum of Understanding with the City of East Cleveland for
bus pad rehabilitation along Euclid Avenue, the adoption of which was moved by Ms. Welch,
seconded by Ms. Pellot and approved by unanimous vote.

2022-92 — Amending Section 642.09 Relocation Assistance of the Codified Rules and
Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority and Section 300.05
Relocation Assistance of the Personnel Policies, the adoption of which was moved by Ms.
McCall, seconded by Ms. Pellot and approved by unanimous vote.



RTA Board of Trustees
September 20, 2022
Page 4 of 6

Ms. Moss added that this was discussed in committee. It's moving these policies from one
document to another. Ms. Burney noted that the changes are not a deletion, but simply a
cleaning up of redundancies in the Code Book, Personnel Policies and Bylaws.

J.  2022-93 — Removing Sections 628.05 Housing Allowance, 642.05 Employment at Will,
642.06 Employee Selection, 642.07 Employment of Relatives and 642.08 Employment
Eligibility Verification, from the Codified Rules and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority as duplicates of the Personnel Policies, the adoption of which was
moved by Ms. McCall, seconded by Ms. Pellot and approved by unanimous vote.

President Lucas asked for an update from Chief Jones on the Transit Ambassador Program. Chief
Jones said the Transit Ambassadors are getting positive feedback. They are doing a hop on/hop off
technique on the HealthLine where they talk to the patrons in teams. One ambassador was able to
assist a customer that was having a medical emergency. Request have been made for more
ambassadors and to expand their territory to other areas.

Secretary-Treasurer's Report

Kay Sutula, Director of the Office of Management & Budget gave the report on behalf of Rajan
Gautam, Deputy General Manager of Finance and Secretary-Treasurer. The U.S. unemployment rate
dropped from 3.6% in June to 3.5% in July. Ohio’s unemployment rate has remained steady at 3.9%.
The county unemployment is not seasonally adjusted which causes the increase. The Bureau of
Labor Statistics does not have any updated data for the State and County for August.

Over the past three years the height of the labor force was February 2020 due to the pandemic. After
the pandemic we are back to pre-COVID unemployment levels for the five major Metropolitan
Statistical Areas in Ohio. For July, unemployment rates for Cleveland are 5.4% down from 5.5%.
Cincinnati is 3.4% up from 3.3%. Columbus at 3.3% up from 3.2%. Dayton at 3.8% up from 3.7%.
Toledo remains unchanged at 3.9%. August ridership was 19.8% above August 2021 levels and YTD
ridership is 19% above 2021. Increases are showing healthy gains compared to the 2021 levels. We
are currently in a new contract transitioning from Passport to Masabi for the purchase of fares.

Passenger fares are 16.7% lower than August 2021 and 19.5% lower than budget. YTD they are
17.5% higher than the same period in 2021. Sales tax for September 2022 is 5.7% lower than
September 2021 and 7.6% lower than budget. YTD receipts are 6.8% higher than 2021. Sixteen of
the 23 categories were positive for September. Motor vehicles/watercraft are 3.0% lower. Online
sales were 33.3% higher. Regular/Statewide sales were 7.0% higher. Ms. Moss asked why
passenger fares are down. Ms. Sutula said this is due to the transition from Passport to Masabi.
Passport provided daily revenue. Masabi is a month in arrears.

General Manager/CEO Report

India L. Birdsong Terry, General Manager, CEO gave the report. Staff attended the TRAC
competitive grant hearing, September 14, 2022. Funding requests were made for the Light Rail Track
Replacement and 25Connects/MetroHealth Line BRT project. Funding decisions will be announced
this December. NOACA was also present. Staff hosted a Legislative Update for several Cuyahoga
County state delegation members, September 16, 2022 at the Main Office. Updates included
upcoming projects, current state funding and next year’s state budget. The installation of the new
Transit Ambassadors and Crisis Intervention Specialist was held September 2 at the Main Office.
They begin work on the HealthLine and Red Line September 6.



RTA Board of Trustees
September 20, 2022
Page 5 of 6

The RTA Cleans Program launched back in June. Cleaning includes interior of buses: high touch
points, windows, doors, removal of trash, deodorizing, etc. RTA employees received service pins and
certificates for milestones years (5 years to 40 years) of service, September 7 at the Main Office.

RTA participated in the City of Cleveland Senior Day, September 15. RTA distributed promo bags to
the attendees. GM, CEO Birdsong Terry participated in Trinity Cathedral Sunday Forum, September
11. Topics included transportation access, fare equity and operating beyond traditional expectations.
In recognition of Hispanic Heritage Month, RTA placed Hispanic/LatinX diaspora country flags at

W. 25" Street Station and on bus stop signs along the Clark-Fulton route. Several staff members
were a part of the team to make this project possible. Ms. McCall congratulated the staff and
suggested we do the same for other special cultural celebrations.

Mr. Feliciano reported that Latinos in Transit was created in 2016. He will attend their leadership
conference in Dallas, TX. The group has been growing along with their collaboration with other
national groups like APTA and COMTO. Board member Luz N. Pellot and Paratransit Reservationist
Operator, Pablo Santiago were honored as 100+ Latinos Cleveland Must Know 2022 Cohort.

RTA’s DE&l team created a short film entitled “From Ashes to Beauty: Art, Transportation & Place
Making” as part of the “We Wear the Mask” project. It aired at the Atlas Shaker Square, September
18 during the Greater Cleveland Urban Film Festival. The film highlighted the partnership with
Elevate the East and the importance of art and public transit. Ms. McCall congratulated the team.
She was one of the founding members of the Elevate the East 93 group. She added that the
collaboration was started to include more art in the ward and to be connected to the Burten, Bell,
Carr, Bell Development area. The connectivity to the E. 93/ E. 105 transit project is important. She
asked that the film be shown at the next Elevate meeting.

President’s Report

President Lucas thanked the “We Wear the Mask” committee. He participated in the 11" District
Labor Day parade. He thanked Chief Jones for allowing him to parade with the Transit Police during
several special events.

Public Comments

1. Rev. Pinkney-Butts — She wants a conversation with the public and the police. She wants
people of color in the media and communications department. She doesn't see fairness for
people of color in the media at RTA. There needs to be more personnel empowerment. She
asked if there are issues with transitioning to EZfare. There was no vote on the NextGen title.
She asked for a more open line of communication with personnel, staff and public.

2. Loh ~ Kudos for RTA for leading. Cleveland was selected for a national study. RTA
designated some advocates to lead the survey. Riders should have input on the rail cars and
fixed route buses.

3. Evan O'Reilly — He represents Northern Ohioans for Budget Legislation Equality (NOBLE).
He’s met with several board members about paratransit service. NOBLE conducted a survey
on the service in the spring. He requested to get on the agenda to share the survey results.

4. Airric Stewart — He said there is a change to the call-in format. In previous meetings he could
hear the meeting in the background while waiting to be cued up. He repeated his proposal for
restoring service on the #15. RTA works for the public.



RTA Board of Trustees
September 20, 2022
Page 6 of 6

5. Sherita Montgomery — She asked about the watercraft tax mentioned by Ms. Sutula. She is in
favor of the #15 route proposal mentioned by Mr. Stewart. She lives in Ward 1. The proposal

is good for the community.

Upcoming Meetings

The next regular Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, October 25, 2022, in the Board Room of
the Authority, Root-McBride Building, 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44113. This meeting
will be live streamed on RTA’s Board page (www.RideRTA.com/board) by selecting the meeting date.
The public is welcome to attend in person.

The meeting was adjourned at 10:30 a.m.

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-94

EXPRESSING CONGRATULATIONS TO THE EMPLOYEES OF THE
GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY WHO RETIRED
DURING THE THIRD QUARTER OF 2022

WHEREAS, the following employees retired from the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority during the third quarter of 2022 after numerous years of dedicated public
service;

Name Title Work Location
Michael Puleo Facilities Manager Triskett
Stephon Griffin Maintenance Technician Shelters
Christina Cook Material Handler Central Bus
Robert Prince Facilities Manager Central Service
Raul Rashad Operator Triskett

Dary! Primm Operator Hayden

WHEREAS, these retirees faithfully gave of their skills, time and talents to provide high
quality public transportation to the community; and

WHEREAS, these retirees did much to contribute to the quality of life in Greater
Cleveland by providing much-needed public transit service and protecting our valuable
environment; and

WHEREAS, the retirees’ outstanding diligence in the performance of their jobs was of
immeasurable value to both riders and residents of Cuyahoga County; and ,

WHEREAS, these retirees represent hundreds of years of invaluable public transit
experience, and they will be missed.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the sincere congratulations and gratitude of the Board of Trustees is
hereby extended to each of the above named employees on the occasion of their retirement
from the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority.

Section 2. That the members of the Board of Trustees offer their best wishes to the
retirees for continued success and happiness, which they so richly deserve.

Section 3. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: October 25, 2022

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
100-326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
2022-95
CONTRACT: FURNISHING OF MOTORCOACH FILTERS, AS Date:
SPECIFIED AND AS REQUIRED, FOR A PERIOD OF October 20, 2022
TWO YEARS —
Initiator:
VENDOR: VEHICLE MAINTENANCE PROGRAM Fleet Management
Department
AMOUNT: NOT TO EXCEED $134,900.00

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval O Review/Comment O Information Only O Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will allow the Authority to enter into a contract for the
furnishing of motorcoach filters, as specified and as required, for a period of two years.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: This contract for motorcoach filters is required for the
furnishing of various engine filters for multiple bus fleets across the Authority. They are used in
general maintenance to help ensure longevity of the coaches and to assist in providing safe
and reliable transportation.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Invitation for Bids (“IFB”) was posted on the GCRTA
Procurement web site and advertised in the local newspapers. Eighteen interested parties
downloaded the solicitation. Five responsive bids were received on September 14, 2022.
The bid of Vehicle Maintenance Program has been determined by the Procurement
Department to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder. A bid summary is
included under Attachment A. A :

A price analysis has been performed and the Procurement Department has determined the
price to be fair and reasonable to the Authority.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have been
met. A 0% DBE goal was established for this procurement due to the lack of certified DBE

firms.
POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement will be funded through the General Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $134,900.00, for the two-year
period. This total amount is approximately 26% above the estimate of $101,029.00.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would impact the Authority’s ability to
maintain and safely operate the Authority’s motorcoach vehicles.

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the bid of Vehicle Maintenance Program be
accepted and the resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive
Officer to enter into a contract.

ATTACHMENT: Attachment A — Bid Summary.



Staff Summary & Comments
Motorcoach Filters 2022-95
Page 2

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

bt 8 St

General Manager, Chief Executife Officer




Attachment A
Bid Summary

Extended Cost

Year 1 Element Air: FLTS $47.11 300 $14,133.00
Engine Oil; ISL $21.22 2,000 $42.440.00
Water; Engine; ISL-G $8.68 1,000 $8,680.00
Year 2
Element Air; FLTS $51.99 300 $15,597.00
Engine Oil; ISL $22.28 2,000 $44 560.00
Water; Engine; ISL-G $9.49 1,000 $9,490.00
$134,900.00

m

Filter Description 'Unit Cost Quantity Extended Cost
Year 1 Element Air. FLTS $53.22 300 $15,966.00
Engine Oil; ISL $23.52 2,000 $47,040.00
Water; Engine; ISL-G $7.17 1,000 $7,170.00
Year 2
Element Air. FLTS $55.34 300 $16,602.00
Engine Oil; ISL $24.46 2,000 $48,920.00
Water:; Engine; ISL-G $7.46 1,000 ’ $7,460.00
$143,158.00

Filter Description

Unit Cost

Quantity

Extended Cost

Year 1 Element Air: FLTS $41.01 300 $12,303.00
Engine Oil; ISL $24.40 2,000 $48,800.00
Water; Engine; ISL-G $7.49 1,000 $7,490.00
Year 2
Element Air; FLTS $45.10 300 $13,530.00
Engine Oil; ISL $29.02 2,000 $58,040.00
Water; Engine; ISL-G $8.92 1,000 $8,920.00

$149,083.00




Attachment A
Bid Summary

&W Diese

Filter Description Umt Cost Extended Cost
Year 1 Element Air: FLTS $64.77 300 $19,431.00
Engine Oil; ISL $22.55 2,000 $45,100.00
Water; Engine; ISL-G $8.69 1,000 $8,690.00
Year 2
Element Air: FLTS $68.01 300 $20,403.00
Engine Oil; ISL $23.68 2,000 $47,360.00
Water; Engine; ISL-G $9.12 1,000 $9,120.00
$150,104.00

rm

Filter Description Unit Cost Quantity Extended Cost
Year 1 Element Air: FLTS $47.43 300 $14,229.00
Engine Qil; ISL $28.78 2,000 $57,560.00
Water; Engine; ISL-G $9.94 1,000 $9,940.00
Year 2
Element Air: FLTS $48.85 300 $14,655.00
Engine Qil; ISL $31.65 2,000 $63,300.00
| Water; Engine; ISL-G $10.93 1,000 $10,930.00

$170,614.00




RESOLUTION NO. 2022-95

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2022-094 WITH VEHICLE MAINTENANCE
PROGRAM FOR THE FURNISHING OF MOTORCOACH FILTERS, AS
SPECIFIED AND AS REQUIRED, FOR A PERIOD OF TWO YEARS, IN AN
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $134,900.00 (GENERAL FUND, FLEET
MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority requires the furnishing of
motorcoach filters to be used in general maintenance to help ensure longevity of its coaches
and to assist in providing safe reliable transportation; and

WHEREAS, the bid of Vehicle Maintenance Program, located at 3595 N. Dixie Highway
Bay 7, Boca Rotan, FL 33431 for the furnishing of motorcoach filters, as specified and as
required, for a period of two years, was received on September 14, 2022, at unit prices resulting
in a total contract amount not to exceed $134,900.00; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of Vehicle
Maintenance Program to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder and
recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid of Vehicle Maintenance Program for the furnishing of
motorcoach filters, as specified and as required, for a period of two years, be and the same is
hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Managér, Chief Executive Officer be and she is heréby
authorized to enter into a contract with Vehicle Maintenance Program for the furnishing of
motorcoach filters, as specified and as required, for a period of two years.

Section 3. That said contract shall be funded through the General Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $134,900.00 for the two-year

period.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon future funding, compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and
Addenda, if any; the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and
insurance requirements and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the
Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority’s Board of Trustees
expects that Vehicle Maintenance Program will attempt to exceed the 0% minimum DBE goal
assigned to this procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: October 25, 2022

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

01-12-22

TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:

2022-96

REMOVING SECTIONS 642.10 REDUCTION IN WORKFORCE, Date:

642.11 WORKFORCE ACCOMMODATION, 642.12 October 20, 2022

TRANSITIONAL/ALTERNATIVE WORK AND 642.13 PRE-

TERMINATION MEETING FROM THE CODIFIED RULES AND Initiator:

REGULATIONS OF THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL Human.Resources

TRANSIT AUTHORITY AS DUPLICATES OF THE PERSONNEL

POLICIES

ACTION REQUEST:

Approval [0 Review/Comment O Information Only [0 Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will remove Sections 642.10 Reduction in
Workforce, 642.11 Workforce Accommodation, 642.12 Transitional/Alternative Work and
642.13 Pre-Termination Meeting from the Codified Rules and Regulations (“Code”) of the
Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Policies and Procedures of the Board of Trustees
were codified in 1989, pursuant to Resolution 1989-176. The Code Book is now
undergoing a comprehensive review and update so that the Code will conform to the
current structure and operations of the Authority.

Human Resources provisions are located in three places: (1) the Code Book, which
provides the broad, overarching guidance for the Authority enacted by the Board of
Trustees; (2) the Personnel Policies, which govern day-to-day operations and are
approved by the Board of Trustees and (3) the Personnel Procedures, which contain
detailed procedures that are not approved by the Board of Trustees. The proposed
amendment will remove the sections from the Code Book listed above because they are
duplicates of Personnel Policies 300.06, 300.07, 300.08 and 300.09.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: Adoption of the resolution will remove the duplication of provisions in
the Code Book and the Personnel Policies.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: Does not apply.

ALTERNATIVES: Not adopting this resolution. Not adopting this resolution would leave
duplicate provisions in both the Code Book and the Personnel Policies.

RECOMMENDATION: This resolution was discussed at the October 4, 2022 Committee
of the Whole meeting and recommended for consideration by the full Board of Trustees.
It is recommended that this resolution be adopted.

ATTACHMENTS: A. Red-line of proposed removal of Sections 642.10, 642.11, 642.12
and 642.13 from the Code Book.



Staff Summary & Comments 2022-96
Code Book Updates
Page 2

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the availability of funds, legal
form and conformance with the Procurement requirements.

%@, /? 2., Aéf/;a

General Manager, Chief-Executive QOfficer




ATTACHMENT A TO STAFF SUMMARY







RESOLUTION NO. 2022-96

REMOVING SECTIONS 642.10 REDUCTION IN WORKFORCE, 642.11
WORKFORCE ACCOMMODATION, 642.12 TRANSITIONAL/ALTERNATIVE
WORK AND 642.13 PRE-TERMINATION MEETING FROM THE CODIFIED
RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL
TRANSIT AUTHORITY AS DUPLICATES OF THE PERSONNEL POLICIES

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 1989-176, the Board of Trustees of the Authority
codified the resolutions establishing its policies and procedures; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has conducted a review and determined that Sections
642.10 Reduction in Workforce, 642.11 Workforce Accommodation, 642.12
Transitional/Alternative Work and 642.13 Pre-Termination Meeting should be removed from
the Authority’s Codified Rules and Regulations as duplicates of Personnel Policies 300.06,

300.07, 300.08 and 300.09.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That Sections 642.10 Reduction in Workforce, 642.11 Workforce
Accommodation, 642.12 Transitional/Alternative Work and 642.13 Pre-Termination Meeting are
hereby removed from the Codified Rules and Regulations.

Section 2. That Personnel Policies 300.06 Reduction in Workforce, 300.07 Workforce
Accommodation, 300.08 Transitional/Alternative Work and 300.09 Pre-Termination Meeting will

remain unchanged.

Section 3. That thé Board of Trustees héreby waives the fourtéen-day period provided
for in Article XI, Section 2 of the Bylaws.

Section 4. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: October 25, 2022
President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
OPTION 2022-97

BUYER: FLAHERTY & COLLINS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

OPTION PRICE: $5,000.00 FOR THE INITIAL OPTION PERIOD OF

AGREEMENT: AN OPTION TO PURCHASE CUYAHOGA COUNTY "o

PERMANENT PARCEL NUMBER 001-32-012 ON

DETROIT AVENUE, CLEVELAND, OH 44102 October 20, 2022

Initiator: Programming
and Planning

ONE YEAR AND $5,000.00 FOR A SINGLE
ADDITIONAL EXTENDED OPTION PERIOD OF ONE
YEAR

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval O Review/Comment O Information Only O Other

1.0

2.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: The resolution seeks board approval of an Option Agreement with
Flaherty & Collins Development, LLC (“FC”) for the proposed purchase of Cuyahoga County
Permanent Parcel Number 001-32-012 on Detroit Avenue, Cieveland, OH, located adjacent to
the West Boulevard-Cudell Red Line Rapid Transit Station. This Option Agreement will allow
the developer to make application to the State of Ohio for project financing and initiate a
development process for a residential transit-oriented development (“TOD") project. This
option to purchase and the proposed sale will remove excess real property from GCRTA's real
property inventory and promote TOD on vacant land.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: GCRTA acquired this property from the City of Cleveland in
1975 via the Mass Transit System Transfer Agreement of 1975 which transferred the assets of
the Cleveland Transit System to the GCRTA. The site offered for sale is vacant land and has
been listed on GCRTA’s Excess Real Property Inventory and Utilization Plan since 2016. Sale
of this property will not adversely affect rail operations and will promote a TOD project
immediately adjacent to a busy rail station.

A residential TOD was determined to be the highest and best use for this excess property and
will promote the TOD and economic development goals of the GCRTA. The TOD project will
enhance the value of the existing real estate assets at the West Boulevard-Cudell Rapid
Transit Station.

FC intends to develop a 60-to-80-unit affordable housing project on this 1.37-acre site.

GCRTA set the option price after a review of current option fee market pricing for this type of
transaction, size of the parcel, and the proposed option term. During the initial option period,
FC will prepare and apply for project financing to the State of Ohio to secure tax credit
financing to develop the TOD project. As a requirement for the financing submittal, FC will
need to demonstrate site control of the parcel. An option agreement with GCRTA will satisfy
this financing application requirement.




Staff Summary & Comments 2022-97
Cuyahoga County Permanent Parcel Number 001-32-012 B
Page 2

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

This proposed option agreement will not inhibit the operation of the West Boulevard-Cudell
Rapid Transit Station and will promote the TOD and economic development goals of the
GCRTA.

FC is a nationally known developer of multi-family housing projects based in Indianapolis,
Indiana with both experience and current development activity in northeast Ohio.

This resolution only seeks to authorize an option to purchase agreement with FC. Additional
Board authorization will be required to authorize execution of a Purchase and Sale Agreement,
if it is determined to be in the best interest of GCRTA for the sale of the parcel to proceed.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
DBE/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: The proposed Option Agreement is consistent with the Real Estate and
TOD Policies of the GCRTA.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: The option price of $5,000.00 for the initial option period of one year
with one extended option period of one year for an additional $5,000.00 is determined to be fair
and reasonable pricing for this type of transaction. The price is based upon a current survey of
option pricing for similar transactions.

ALTERNATIVES: The GCRTA can refuse to enter into an option agreement with FC for
Permanent Parcel Number 001-32-012 and would continue to maintain the property and

- market the property for TOD.

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the proposed Option Agreement with FC to support
the initiation of a TOD project on the subject parcel.

ATTACHMENTS: A. Location Map
B. Option Agreement Draft
C. County Property Summary Report

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

Lz, 5O, e v

General Man%gér, Chief Executive Officer




RESOLUTION NO. 2022-97

AUTHORIZING THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT
AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTO AN OPTION AGREEMENT WITH FLAHERTY &
COLLINS DEVELOPMENT, LLC, AN INDIANA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY,
FOR THE PROPOSED SALE OF PROPERTY ADJACENT TO THE WEST
BOULEVARD-CUDELL RAPID TRANSIT STATION, KNOWN AS CUYAHOGA
COUNTY PERMANENT PARCEL NUMBER 001-32-012 ON DETROIT
AVENUE, CLEVELAND, OHIO

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (‘GCRTA”") is the owner of
record of land on Detroit Avenue, Cleveland, Ohio, which has a Permanent Parcel Number of
001-32-012 (the “Property”); and

WHEREAS, the Property was acquired by GCRTA in 1975 resulting from the Mass
Transit System Transfer Agreement of 1975 with the City of Cleveland which transferred the
assets of the Cleveland Transit System to the GCRTA; and

WHEREAS, the Property is vacant land and is not currently used to support the West
Boulevard-Cudell Rapid Transit Station; and

WHEREAS, the Property has been on the GCRTA list of excess property with the Federal
Transit Administration (‘FTA") since 2016; and

WHEREAS, the GCRTA has advertised and marketed the property for sale through a fair
and open process since 2018; and

WHEREAS, it was determined that a residential multi-family Transit Oriented
Development (“TOD") project is an appropriate use for the Property, compatible with the TOD
and economic development goals of GCRTA and is consistent with the Real Estate Policies of
the GCRTA; and

WHEREAS, Flaherty & Collins Development, LLC (“FC”) has successfully developed
residential TOD projects nationally and in northeast Ohio and intends to develop a TOD project
on the Property; and

WHEREAS, a residential TOD was determined to be the highest and best use for the
Property in accordance with current TOD goals and objectives; and

WHEREAS, GCRTA intends to cooperate with FC to plan and develop the TOD by
offering the Option Agreement, assisting with entitlement, supporting the efforts of FC to finance
the TOD project, and offering other appropriate TOD services; and

WHEREAS, the Option Agreement will initiate the development process, allowing FC to
apply for tax credit financing from the State of Ohio and will demonstrate site control of the
Property by FC necessary for the financing application submittal during the term of the
agreement.



Resolution No. 2022-97
Page 2

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized to
enter into an Option Agreement with FC for the exclusive right and option for FC to purchase the
1.37-acre parcel of property owned by GCRTA on Detroit Avenue in the City of Cleveland,
adjacent to the West Boulevard-Cudell Rapid Transit Station and identified as Cuyahoga County
Permanent Parcel Number 001-32-012 (the “Property”).

Section 2. That the option period will commence on the effective date of the Option
Agreement for an initial option period of one year and allowing one extended option period of
one additional year.

Section 3. That the option price of Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) for the initial
option period and an additional Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) for the extended option
period represents the current value of option prices for agreements of this type, size and nature
as verified by survey of similar agreements.

Section 4. That, if FC exercises the option, GCRTA will require approval from its Board
of Trustees authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a Purchase
Agreement for the sale of said Property to FC.

Section 5. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: October 25, 2022 |

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



ATTACHMENT A

PPN 001-32-012

4 f - - o= ‘ ¥ 3 ".F
_m—: e ] - Date Created: 10/17/2022

Legend

= ; . DMunicipaIities
= —Right Of Way
| | | — Platted Centerline

UParcel
001320038

007132004

e

001280078
» s

>
=
<
>
@)
s
<
tr
Z
=
>

400 Feet This map is a user generated static output from an Internet mapping site and Cu ya hog a Coun fy

—:—:I hd
is for reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may or may not be E t G I S
Projection: accurate, current, or otherwise reliable. n e rp rl S e

WGS_1984_Web_Mercator_Auxiliary_Sphere THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION PUTTING CUYAHOGA COUNTY OM THE MAP

ATTACHMENT A




|ATTACHMENT B |
DRAFT
OPTION AGREEMENT

This Option Agreement ("Option Agreement") is entered into as of ,
2022 ("Effective Date"™) by and between the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority, a political subdivision of the State of Ohio, 1240 West 6th Street, Cleveland, Ohio
44113 ("Seller"), and Flaherty & Collins Development, LLC, an Indiana limited liability
company (together with its permitted successors, assigns, and/or designees,
“Buyer”) (collectively, "the Parties), entered into under the authority of Seller's Resolution
No. adopted a copy of which is attached to

and incorporated into this Agreement as Exhibit A.

Recitals

WHEREAS, Seller owns an approximate 1.37 acre parcel of real estate (Parcel No.
001-32-012) located adjacent to the West Boulevard-Cudell Rapid Transit Station on Detroit
Avenue, Cleveland, Ohio 44102 and more particularly described on Exhibit B attached
hereto and made a part hereof (the "Property"); and

WHEREAS, Seller and Buyer desire to set forth the terms under which Buyer has the
option to acquire the Property.

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration received, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree as follows:

1. Basic Transaction

a) Purchase Terms. The Seller wishes to sell and the Buyer wishes to
" purchase the Property (as hereinafter defined) in its "As [s" condition. The
Parties shall negotiate an agreement for purchase of the Property
("Purchase Agreement") that shall contain the basic terms contained in
this Option Agreement and other terms and conditions to be negotiated
between the Parties.

b) Purchase Price. The Buyer shall pay the purchase price as determined
by an appraisal and appraisal review prior to the closing of the property.

¢) Air Rights. Air Rights will be acquired separately from the City of
Cleveland, as the City retained the air rights to all of the real estate
(including this Property) transferred as part of the Mass Transit System
Transfer Agreement, dated September 5, 1975, which transferred the
assets of the Cleveland Transit System to the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority. The Seller will make its best efforts to support Buyer in
obtaining the Air Rights. Seller’s previous experiences with obtaining such
Air Rights from the City have been positive.

2. Option

a) Grant of Option. Seller hereby grants to Buyer and Buyer hereby accepts
from Seller, the exclusive, irrevocable right and option to purchase the




Property, together with the improvements located thereon and all rights,
privileges, easements and appurtenances thereto, on the terms and
conditions set forth herein (the "Purchase Option").

b) Option Period. The Seller shall grant Buyer the Purchase Option for an
initial period of twelve (12) months commencing on the Effective Date (the
“Initial Option Period"); provided however, Buyer shall have one (1) option
to extend the Initial Option Period for an additional twelve (12) months (the
“Extended Option Period” and together with the Initial Option Period,
collectively, the “Option Period").

c) Option Price. Buyer shall pay to Seller the sum of Five Thousand
Dollars ($5,000.00) for the Purchase Option (the "Option Price"). The
Buyer shall pay the Option Price to Seller within ten (10) days of
Buyer's receipt of a fully executed original of this Option Agreement
authorized by Seller's Board of Trustees. In the event Buyer elects to
extend the Initial Option Period, Buyer shall provide Seller written notice
of its election to extend and Buyer shall remit to Seller the additional
sum of Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) no later than the expiration
date of the Initial Option Period.

d) Effect of Option Price on Purchase. The Seller shall not refund the Option
Price to Buyer unless a refund is required as set forth in Section 5b.

e) Notice of Exercise: Purchase Agreement. In the event Buyer desires to
exercise the Purchase Option, Buyer shall give written notice of such
exercise to Seller and the Parties shall thereupon proceed to execute and

- deliver the Purchase Agreement and to consummate the transaction in
accordance with the terms and conditions contained therein. Closing of
such transaction shall occur in accordance with the terms of the Purchase

Agreement.

f)  Notice to Buvyer that Approval of Sale by FTA and Seller's Board of Trustees
is Required. Buyer expressly acknowledges that the Federal Transit
Administration (FTA) and Seller's Board of Trustees must approve the sale
of the Property. Seller and Buyer are entering into this Option Agreement
with the understanding that, even if Buyer exercises the Purchase Option,
the Seller may be unable to complete the sale if FTA and/or Seller's Board
of Trustees do not approve the sale.

3. Inspections. During the Option Period, provided Seller has received and
acknowledged receipt of the Option Price and received Buyer's evidence of insurance
required by Section 14 herein, Seller shall provide Buyer and/or Buyer's agents and
representatives access to enter upon the Property for the purpose of making such
inspections of the Property as Buyer, in Buyer's sole discretion, deems necessary
and/or desirable. Said inspections may include, without limitation, such environmental
tests, audits and inspections and such soil borings, samples and tests and surveying
and engineering studies, and other inspections of the Property as Buyer, in Buyer's sole
discretion, deems necessary. Buyer shall coordinate with and secure approval from



Seller in advance of entering the Property as certain safety parameters or
procedures may be required since the Red Line Rapid adjacent to the Property is
an operating rail transit system. The Parties may enter into a temporary right of
entry agreement to allow Buyer and its consultants access to the Property. Buyer
shall give Seller reasonable advance written notice of each entry specifying the nature
and purpose of the inspection and the duration of the entry. Buyer shall immediately
provide Seller copies of any and all reports of inspections and tests requested by Seller.
Buyer shall restore or repair the Property as nearly as practicable to essentially the
same condition as it was in prior to its inspections upon completion of Buyer's
inspection, including but not limited to the land, underground utilities, fixtures, or other
structures. Buyer shall provide evidence at the time of signing this Option Agreement that
Buyer has adequate insurance coverage for this obligation as outlined in Section 14
herein.

4. Title and Survey

a) Titlelnsurance
(1) Buyer shall obtain a preliminary title commitment or "binder" in

respect of the Property (with special tax and lien search) (the "Title
Commitment") issued by the Title Company (as hereinafter defined).
Buyer shall either:
(i) approve the form and substance ofthe Title
Commitment, or
(i) reject it.

(2) Buyer may, at Buyer's option:

(i) accept such title as Seller furnishes upon the Closing Date and
any encumbrances on the Premises, shall be "Permitted
Exceptions;" or

(i) terminate this Option Agreement.

(3) Upon termination of this Option Agreement pursuant to this
subsection, neither party hereto shall thereafter be under any further
liability or obligation to the other party hereunder except as otherwise
provided herein.

b) Survey
(1) Buyer, at Buyer expense, may obtain a metes and bounds survey

of the Property (the "Survey"). The Survey shall be in a form and
substance satisfactory to Buyer, the Title Company and any lender of
Buyer. The Survey shall also contain a certificate, ina form and
substance acceptable to Buyer, certifying to Buyer, the Title Company,
any lender of Buyer, and others designated by Buyer, that the Survey
is an accurate representation of the Property made in accordance
with the "Minimum Standard Detail Requirements for Land Title
Surveys" adopted by the ALTA/JACSM and shall include the location of
all structures and improvements on the Property and the identification
of all easements and rights-of-way, either of record or visible on the
ground, which either benefit or burden the Property.



(2) Buyer shall either:
(i) notify Seller inwriting of Buyer's approval of the Survey; or
(i) notify Seller in writing of any matters shown (or not shown) on
the Survey that are objectionable to Buyer (said matters,
together, herein called the "Survey Defects").

(3) Inthe event that Buyer so notifies Seller of any such Survey Defects,
Seller shall have a period of ten (10) days after receipt of such
notice to cure or remove all such Survey Defects, but Seller shall not
be obligated to cure or remove such Survey Defects. If Seller has not
cured or removed all such Survey Defects to Buyer's satisfaction
within said ten (10) day period, then Buyer may:

(i) accept title to the Property notwithstanding the existence of any
such Survey Defects upon the Closing Date in which case the
Survey Defects shall be deemed to be Permitted Exceptions;

(ii) grant Seller, at Seller's request, additional time in which to cure
any such Survey Defects; or

(i) terminate this Option Agreement. Upon termination of this
Option Agreement pursuant to this subsection, neither party
hereto shall thereafter be under any further liability or obligation
to the other party hereunder except as otherwise provided
herein.

4y If Buyer fails to deliver written notice of its election under subsection
(3), above, prior to the expiration of the Survey Cure Period, then
Buyer shall be. deemed to have elected item (i) above.

5. Closing Date and Possession.

a) Closing Date. The closing of the acquisition of the Property (the "Closing
Date") shall occur within thirty (30) days after the later of:
(1) the Parties' execution of the Purchase Agreement;
(2) Seller's Board of Trustees approval of the sale; or
(3) the Federal Transit Administration (if it then has any interest in the
Property) concurrence with the sale.

b) Effect of Disapproval. Inthe event that the Seller's Board of Trustees
does not approve the sale and/or the Federal Transit Administration does
not approve the sale, then Buyer shall mmediately receive the return of the
Option Price.

¢) Possession. The Buyer may possess the Property on the Closing Date.
The above notwithstanding, the Parties may agree in writing upon another
date.

6. Title Commitment and Escrow Agent. The title company and escrow agent
for the transaction contemplated in the Purchase Agreement shall be Northern Title
Agency, Inc. (the "Title Company").




7. Purchase Agreement. During the Option Period, the Parties shall begin
negotiating in good faith to reach a written Purchase Agreement containing
comprehensive representations, warranties, disclosures, ndemnities, conditions and
agreements.

8. Exclusive Dealing. During the Option Period, Seller shall not negotiate with any
other person or entity relating to the acquisition or lease of the Property, in whole or in part.

9. Notices. Any notice which may be or is required to be given pursuant to the
provisions of this Option Agreement shall be personally delivered, sent by certified or
registered mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or by overnight delivery service and
addressed as follows.

If to Buyer: Flaherty & Collins Development, LLC
One Indiana Square, Suite 3000
Indianapolis, IN 46204
Attn: Julie Collier

Copy to:  Flaherty & Collins Properties
One Indiana Square, Suite 3000
Indianapolis, IN 46204
Attn: Corporate Counsel

If to Seller: Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
1240 West 6" Street
Cleveland, OH 44113
Attn: Property Manager

Copy to:  Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
1240 West 6" Street
Cleveland, OH 44113
Attn: General Counsel

If to Escrow Agent:
Northern Title Agency, Inc.
19545 Center Ridge Road
Rocky River, OH 44116
Attn: Deborah S. Furry

The Parties may change the contact information within this Section by written
communication in lieu of Amendment to this Agreement.

10. Agreement for Further Execution. Prior to, at and after the Closing Date (as
defined in the Purchase Agreement), the Parties shall also each execute and deliver to the other
such other instruments of conveyance, sale, assignment or transfer and shall take or cause to
be taken such other or further action as the Parties shall reasonably request at any time or from
time to time inorder to:

(8) vest, confirm or evidence in Buyer title to all or part of the Property; or
(b) effectuate, in any other manner, the terms and conditions of this Option
Agreement.




11. Authority. Each person and entity signing on behalf of a party to this Option
Agreement individually warrants his or her and its authority so to do and individually warrants
that all necessary actions have been taken to authorize the execution of this Option Agreement

by such party.

12. Real Estate Brokers' Commissions. Inthe Purchase Agreement, Seller and
Buyer will represent and warrant to each other that such Parties have had no dealings
with any real estate broker to any commission in connection with the sale of the Property to
Buyer.

13. Expenses. The Parties shall pay the expenses of such party's own
accountants, attorneys and others engaged in such party's behalf in connection with this
Option Agreement, the transactions contemplated hereby, and the Purchase Agreement
to be entered into between the Parties.

14. Insurance. Buyer shall indemnify Seller for any injury or harm directly or
indirectly resulting from Buyer's inspections conducted on the Property pursuant to this
Option Agreement. Buyer shall provide upon execution of this Option Agreement evidence
of commercial liability insurance covering Buyer's operation with minimum coverage of
$1,000,000 per occurrence. Said insurance shall include contractual liability. Seller shall
be made an additional insured on said insurance policy. The foregoing indemnity shail
not include damage incurred by Seller as a result of Buyer's discovery of environmental or
other conditions upon the Property which predate this Option Agreement.

15. Survival. Sections 2, 12 and 14 shall survive termination or expiration of this
Option Agreement and they shall take precedence over all other terms of this Option
Agreement to the extent of conflict. No expiration or earlier termination provision in this
Option Agreement shall have any effect on the survival of these sections or on any terms
stated to or intended to survive termination of this Option Agreement.

18. Construction. Each Party hereto acknowledges that itwas represented by
counsel and participated equally inthe drafting and negotiation of this Option Agreement
and that, accordingly, no court construing this Option Agreement shall construe it more
stringently against one Party than against the other.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Option Agreement
as of the date first above written.

Seller:

GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY

By:

India L. Birdsong Terry
General Manager / Chief Executive Officer

Approved as to legal form & correctness:

Janet E. Burney, General Counsel
Deputy General Manager for Legal Affairs



Buyer:
FLAHERTY & COLLINS DEVELOPMENT, LLC
By:

David M. Flaherty, President



MyPLACE

Cuyahoga County, Ohio - Property Summary Report
Parcel: 001-32-012

Owner CLEVELANDRTA

Address DETROIT AVE
CLEVELAND, OH. 44102

Land Use OE-

Legal Description 12 NEXT W OF NYC RR

Neighborhood Code 75179

SKETCH

Building 0

Sketchs not available forthis parcsl,
Pleasecontactus at EMcGoldrick@cuyahogacounty us

orcall (218) 443-4583 for a copy ofthe building card,

MAP VIEW

b
LE gl

BUILDING INFORMATION

LAND

Sq Ft
59,740

Code Frontage Depth Acreage
UND 272 1.37

PERMITS

Tax Year Reason Tax Change Exempt Change Percent Complete Reinspect Notes

VALUATION

Taxable Exempt Abated
\?:If:e . Market Market Market TaQ:;Iees ?/:‘I’u -
Value Value Value

Land Value $0 $83,700 $0 $0

Building

Value $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Value $0 $83,700 $0 $0

Land Use 6422 EXEMPT TRA}I?\IBIE' AUTHORITY

IMPROVEMENTS

Type Description Size Height Depth

SALES

Date Buyer Seller Price

9/6/1975 Cleveland RT A Cleveland Rta $0

9/5/1975 Cleveland Rta Cleveland City Of $0

1/1/1975 Cleveland City Of $0
2021 Taxes Charges Payments Balance Due

Tax Balance Summary $.00 $.00 $.00

Information included on this report is believed to be accurate, but is not guaranteed. Cuyahoga County is not liable for errors or omissions.



z40 zaBey

%00°00T {%v9'6) {zv0'165'TE) S 860'9V8LZE $  950'sSZ'96Z $  %D0'00T (%z0°69) (sz2'215'ps) $  TBY'ves'sL S LSTUYVT 4

%98°8C {5%80°'5€) {sy8'652'8Y) 079851 EEL SLL86V'S8 %L8'E (%4796} (68€'£96'€5) 667 TI6'YS 016'2b6

%000 - - - S - S %000 - - B - S -

%bb'LT HOE'BY EEE'BLE'IT 980'ST8'YS $  Tev'eeTis $ %000 - {880518'rS) $  8B0'ST8YS S -

%000 - (99v°9TY°L9) 99v°9TH LY $ - S %000 - - $ N $ -

%000 - - - $ - S %000 - - $ - $ -

%150 (%96'vE} {228's18) S6Y'EEE’T $  898'/1ST S %D {%97°6€) (se€'tz) $  205%s $  LOT'€E

%2ZEO - 58911 £86°TbT R 72:3 0 S %ELE - y87'UL8 S 60LTY $  E€66'ET6

%10 (%6556} {vT'2av't) 65£'TT8'L $  urvee S %000 - - $ - s -

%200 (%£9°€8} (6£2'9¢2) SEE'TRY $  960'9Y S %000 - 018 H - $ o8

%S0 %0L°95 9118y 069°958 $  9ov'eveT S %000 - - $ - S -

%IUT %EFEOT 020'v99°T 6£9'509'T 66969 Y%EL'T %0E Tt pT6ECT wr0°00€ 956°€Z1

%L0°0 {%86°9} {01’51} voT'S7T 5 V6E'ROT $ %00 (%S0} R 7343} S 98L'ET $  ST9'9T

%YT0 - 98t°7SE SBETL $  us'Ey S %9g0 - S56°9L S 602TX $  pIT’e8

%800 {%vT'ST) (seT'er) [£34=:14 S 6LO'OVT $ %00 - 134724 S 999 $ 668

%vE0 %b6'y 6£9'61 244113 S £98'91p S %ES0 (%8182} {08505} L 2 4°11A S ves'szl

%L90 - 08L0SE°T [474:14] $  T6V'6L6'T $ %90 REFELT 18v'L8 S 658'3L S 9vE'YST

%69°E9 %8L'9 TS6'BL6'TT PET'T69'9LT 980'129°880 %99°v8 [375) {zse'zst't) S62°9L6'TL EVE81L07

%69°ED %8L'9 756'8L8°TT PET'T69'9LT S 980'TL9'88T $  %99v8 (%2L°5) (Z5€'¢52T) $  S6Z'9L6'TT S EY6'8TLOT

%SE'S %9161 TE8'S20'E 599'68L'ST 96t'518 91 %EL'S %0STE 70T°p8S bYZL6LT OVETRE'T

%811 %SE'ET YHEETY £25'S60°E $  1.8'80E S WKST (%88°T) (zo7'1) S o9z8’ese S pEosLE

%58°0 - LLT'PES'T 935'6L6 $  SHLEIST 3 %NT - SEL'TOS S - $  SELTOS

%IT'0 (%8€'s) {e09°sE) 925'199 $  £76'S79 $  %9T0 - 96L°67 R 744 S 0I9%6E

%ET'T %L9'S 688'952 YE0°79S'Y $  £re'0Ts’Y $ %S (359°6) {ooe'as} $  SOSEBS S soT'Les

%8Y'T %LTEL +20°558 S OT0'T6v'9 $  vEo'ovE‘L S %eet %STHT ££0°9TT S 680078 $  91'9t6 $
10140 % IINVHI% FINVIHVA [T} QLA W10140% IDNVHI% IINVIYVA ] HINOW HINOW
IN3YHND 1707 fed74 IN3YYND ¥A HOld ANIWUND

1Z0T ‘O YIBWILAIS ANV 2207 ‘OF YIBINILJIS AIANT AONMId IHL HO4
GNN3 TVHINID - BV3IA HOIE O1 G3BVJIND)D GIAI3IIY HSYD 40 13043
ALIMOHLNY LISNVEL TYNOIDIY ONVIZAITI ¥31VIND 3HL

Uoday snuaasy

GNNS TYHIN3D - QIAIEDIY HSVD TVL0L

HSVD 30 SIDUN0S YIHLO ANV SINIWISENEWIIY TVI0L8NS
ANIWISYNEWIZY HLD NIJLSIOM - INIDIVA GIADD
dYY TWN3034
YVSHYD u3a32
19V S3¥vD VY334
S1d13034 SNOINVTIIOSIN
IINVLSISSY ONLLYHIJO WH3a34
{HOLVIN TYD07 “3LVIS “TY¥3A34) IINYNILNIVIN IALINIATY
(HOLY Y301 31V1S “VH3034) LNIWISHNBAITY LINVED
SANNI3Y XV INVIOUd/OND/1INT

HSV5 40 §33U110% UIAL0 GNV SINTNISaNawise

INNIAIY YIHLO V10LENS
Y¥3HLO
JWOOINI 1S3HILNE
FWOONI TVAN3Y
SNOISSIWINGD S531S1HDIY DNIWVYN
SNOISSINWOI/SNOISSIINOD/ONISLLYIAGY
"INNIATY HIHIO

$3101S9NS ONILVHIO V1018Nn5
X¥13508 S3VS
‘SIITISENS DNILYEIO

$3uvd YIDNISSVd IVLOLENS
ONILINILL IHEOW
$Svd-n
SQYYIIYYL INIANLS - ASWD
SITVS LIAINL/SSVd
538Vd HSVD

'SIHVS HIONISSYd




zjor2deq

%00°00T %Lb'y vIL'vL9°2T $  950'SST'967 S TbE'08SEST $  %0000T (%89°0} (1ev’ocT) LSTTLY'VE 88Z'THI VT [

%9857 %ST'T ZbY'696 SLL'365°S8 EEEGISPE %L8'E %6 TES O16'L6L 016'(v6 000°0ST

%000 - - - - %000 - - - -

%Y LT %210 880'v6 TZy'e62'18 EEE'66T'TR %000 - - - -

%00'0 - - - - %000 - - - -

%000 - - - - %000 - - - -

%150 - 898'££0°T 898'L15'T 000°0%Y %10 (%6 €€} (£68°91} L0T'eE 600°05

%ZED - [43:8% UBySe - BEL'E - £66'E16 £66'ET6 -

%IT'0 {%59'2v) {ge8’ss} TITpYE 000009 %00°0 - - - -

%200 {%96°68) (FOGETH} 960'9y 00009 %00°0 - 018 org -

%S0 {%p997) {v65'28Y} 90VTYE'T 000'0£8'T %000 - {ooo'cot) - 000°00T

PIPO3 piey - uonEIO|Y TZOT uone3oly 1207 .

%0T'T %BE'TE 900T8L 669°692°F £69°88Y°T %ELT %LES6 §56'907 BSE'ELL 00017

%L0°0 %59°69) (309°08t) ¥6£'607 G00'069 %L0°0 (%299} (58£'€€) ST8°9T 000'0S

%yT0 (%92°0T) (621'15) T8'eTy 000'SLY %9ED %7129 PoT'pE v91'68 000'sS

%80°0 {%vb 1) {1z6'691} 60°0v2 000°0TY %010 {%ot'sed {tor'se) 668'VT 000°00T

%YT'0 (%€L°5T) {ogg'24) £98°9TY £69'V6Y %ES'C - vE6'92T 413143 -

%L9'0 - 76v'095'T T6V'6L6'T 000'6TY %L9'0 - SYETST 9bEYST ooo'zt

%69°E9 %69V 601'Skb'8 980'729'881 9£6'STZ081 %8908 (%L5°C) (8z8'969°T) EV6°8TL0T Tea'sTh T

%69°E9 %69 60T'Spb'8 980'7£9'88T 9£6°STZ0BT %99'b8 (%25°4) {8£8°969'1) £46'3TL'0C 128'SIY'7

%5E'9 %8L'ST LST'6LY'T 961'S18°81 GEE'IEEDT %EL'G %L0'BT 648125 9YEIBE'T L9v'658°T

%8T'T (%960t} (TTU'zer) TL8'80SE 86°0V6'E %YL (%95°2€) (€p871817) ¥29'9LE 199'8SS

%580 - SvL'EL9'T SYL'ETST 000’08 %S0T - SEL'TOS SEL'TOS -

%120 - £26°7ES £26'579 000°E6 %910 - 079'8¢ 079'6€ 000'T

%EI'T (%€670T) {rEb'168) €76'08'y LSE'TIY'S %SE'T {%eTTT) (seL'z2) S0T'L2S 000°009

%T %TV'TZ VEQ'96Z'T $  bEOOPEL $  000'0s0'e §  %ERE GbLEE 291987 791°9£6 00000 S
Wi0L40 % IONVHI% FINVIVA [avy 139004 Q1A Wi0L30 % IDNVHI% FINVINVA HINOW HINOW
ANFHHND zz0z 0T AN3YHND 1N3YEND 139008

220T ‘0 ¥3I8W3IL43S GIANT QO3 JHL HOA
GNN4 TYHINID - 1350NT OL GIEVJIANCT GIAIIDIY HSVI 40 L4043

ALIBOHLAY LISNVEL TYNOID3Y ANVIZAITD HILYIUO JHL

yoday anuasay

ONN IVHINID - GIAIEDIY HSVD VIOL

HSVD 40 SIDYNOS YIHLO ANV SINIWISHNBWITY TY10190S
ANINISHNGINIIY YLD NIZLSTOM - INIDIVA GIADD
d¥Y w4334
VYSHED Tvy3033
15V $33vD Tv¥3a34
51413239 SNOINVTIISIN
IDNVISISSY ONLLVYI4O TWy3a3d
{HOLVIN V301 “3LVLS "TvE3034) IINVNILNIVIN IALLNIARYNS
{HOLY Y207 "3LV1S "IVH3033) INIWISENSIWIZY INVYD
SGNN43Y XVL INV4OYd/ONINING

‘HSVD 30 337UN0S UIHIO GNY SINIWISHIaWIIE

3NNIAIY YIH10 TvI018NS
¥3HIO
JNOONI LSIYILNI
JWODNI TVINIY
SNOISSINWOD $S31 SLHOIY ONIWYN
SNOISSININOI/SNOISSIINOI/ONISILYIAQY
SANNINIY YIHIO

S31AISINS ONLLVHILO VLOLENS
XV13ISN B SIWVS
$310ISENS SNIIVYId0

S3YVH YIDNISSV V1018NS
ONLLINDIL IUGON
SSvd-n
SAYVIIYYI INIANLS - GSWD
SFTIVS LINDIL/SSVd
SIUVI HSVD

“534VI YIONISSVd




Zi9'siiLies

%l¥y %959 ZL9'SZLLies | zeg'ovi'zoes 085'Z8L'861%  0S0'VLL'VLLS %192 %l 625'v05'22$
%69'¥ %89 980'129'88l% | 826'62Z'08L$ SE1'269'9LL8  06.'€02'951L$ (%252) (%2L'G) | ev6'8LL'02%
%EY'9 %958 £vL'266'291$ | L51L'018'I518 BER'SLLVSLE  Ze6'6¥5'OELS %¥C0 %veT L0L'v00'22$
%EY L %856 Try'Iy6'syLs | 621°/58'GELS €92'¢6L'cElS  808'LLO'BLLS %C0'S %CLL osl'sve'zes
%18, %E0°04 Zsz'zoz'eet$ | GLT'SL9'pLLS 289'9Zv'ZiLS  69L'€59'60L$ %i8'Y %06'9 yev'eLg'ees
%858 %8L°0L 88'€20°10L$ | 0/8'9£0'e6$ 819'z12'16% 926'92.'68% %¥CE %LES Z85'6/1'81%
%EB'6 %€0°CL 9vZ'vre'ees 698'/2v'G.$ Z68'8Y6'€LS  €L8'SEV'viS %06°L %S00} | STY'6LV'8LS
%0v'0L %19°CL 2z8'voe'vos Z08'00¢€'85$ 059'/61°4S$  BO¥'€L6'LGS %e0'el %8261 Lyo'lzs'ees
%cC6'8 %01 L L8L'EYS 0pS £26'222'L6% €90'¢6¥'9€$ 866'€5.'9¢e$ %8L°L %CE6 ¥20'659'61%
%19'01 %C8CL 151'v88'0Z$ 696'088'81$ vSL'0lS'8LS veL'e0e'sLs %Lo'0L %T8TL | LGL'¥88'0TS
SONVIEVA  ZONVHO VLDV 3LVINILSE IvALOY WNLOV JLVINLLSE FONVHD VALV
1S3 % AlA % AlA 202 aiAa ala aiaA aita ATHLNOW 1202 % HLNOW [44 74
2z0T SNSYIA Z20T (4404 ceoT 34174 (174174 SNSUIA IVNLOV 17474
ATHLNOW SNSYUIA
1202 (44174

2¢0¢ ¥380.100 HONOYHL S1dIF03d TVNLOV
S3XVL 38N ANV S3TVS

ALIHOHLNY LISNVYL TVNOIOIY ANVTIATTO ¥ILVINO

ajewnss gg0z ueyl 1oybiy (08£'620'6$) %iv v
fendy Lzoz ueyl 1aybiy (2£0'66°2L$) %959

alAa

31ewinss 2z0z 129010 ueyy Jaybiy (1/2'v85%) %492
[BN1DY 1207 4940100 ueyl Jaybiy (080'vLO'LS) %2LY

050'986'2vC$
Lrp'885'02%
Lg8'182'02%
¥52'026'12%
128'5Ly'22$
820'c56'L2$
vL6'L8L'LTS
SvE'8e9'178
L00'609°21$
190'L2V'LLS
6/8'2.0°12%
yS6'LYe'8Ls

696'088'81L$

A1LVINLLSE
(44114

6vL'LvE'eeTs

6€.2'2£8'02$
€£v'9ze'0Z$
SPY'06Y'LZS
662'9/6'L2$
9/5'z2s'1es
285'99/'0Z$
yo0'vie'ies
92L'€9Z'LL$
[AZALTACTRS
/85'v99°'02$
80€'Z86'LLS

y52'016'8L$

IVNLOV
34114

YIuo

:Arewiwing
ssp'ivioles IvioL
§50'z82'8L$ ¥3aW303a
£9€'160'LL$ Y3GWIAON
19Z'025'81$ Y¥380100
£58'€59'61$ ¥38W3LdAS
821285418 1snonvy
6£9'POE'ELS ATNP
v61'926'GLS E[NaTy
Z0L'€62'51$ AVIN
SOr'097'9LS THdY
Liv'eLz'LZS HOYVN
¥9Z'05v'8L$ AHYNYE3
vEL'e0E'8LS AMYNNVE

VNIV RETNEREDY
ozoz HLNOW



%EL'E
%S€0
%SE0
%SGE0
%0¢'v
%00V
%SL'¢
%EEE
%90°¢
%00'¢C
%6L°L
%86°C

%29}
%862
%Se0

%E8'C

%SE0
%86°C

%vlZ

%SE0
%vL'L
%G8'C
%SE0
%862
%ELe
%00°€
%024
%LG°0
%SC0
%GE0

%E0°L

%Ll

(30 B or B op

€601
9ee
6201
£86
0¢6
06¢

o

[a¢ I <p]

DO MM OMm

6201
¥96
6.8
864
FAS"]

€

ai3A  ALRKNLYIN LSIHILNI
IOVHIAV OL SAVA Q3ndsoyv

FOVHIAY

§6V°50£$ 19£'580°6€1L$
0% 868'101% €
0% 9zz'8% €
0$ 208'v9% €
0% 000'000's$ G601
000'65% 000'000'Gl$  S6OL
68/'cls 610'688'v$ 692
G/G'16$ 000'000'61$ G601
G/8'€8% 0LL'266'6% €801
€51 'prs GZZ'i86'vS 0601
801'4LS SzZL'Pre'es 95
0% orL'e0.'18% £
858'v91L$
0% 68E'Pr$ €
0$ 696'61 1% €
0% 192'712's8
0% 9/2'86% €
0$ 166°GLL'GS €
Li8'9LLS L9L°15Z°8p$
0% 866'/82'9% )
0% ¥GLLLS €
0% p95'9ezs €
0% 689'2.% €
0% S0L'0vE'BLE €
598'6v% /88'/91'88  S60L
06.'2¢$ 000'000'cs  SBOL
009'12% 000'000's$  660L
5ie'Ls 000'000'€s 5601
1ve'ss 00G'L66'PS  SBOL
0% G99'9ELS €
0% SE5'68L°L1LS
0% GE6'681'L1S €
TIVdIONIMd  SAVd
V1oL Wy3L

Z 40 | sbed

HNVE ATM
ANYE AZM
dIIMSHINVYE ATN
SNYI0DIN 13411S
SNVYIODIN 134118
S3LI-END3S JOLTHH
SNVIO2IN 1341LS
SNVIOJIN 134ILS
SOVIODIN 13411S
SNVYIOJIN 1341LS
OIHO 4O 31vlis

OIHO 40 31VIiS
dIIMS-HNVYE AN

ANVE A
OIHO JO 31v1s

ANVE AZH
ANVE NOLONILNNHK
JINYE ONd
ANVE A3M
OIHO 40 31v1s
SNYIOJIN 1341LS
SNVIOJIN 13411LS
SNVYIOOIN 134ILS
SNVYIODIN 1341LS
SAVIOOIN 134118
ANVYE AIA

MNYE NOLONILNNH
NOILNLILSN]

H03 AD-NISYE HOLvD
HOI-INVHD

HO3 AIM-HOLVIN V001
g7H4
g7H4

dO MNVEANYT ¥3AVE
gTHd
OWTHS
9044
a7THd
OIHO "VYLS-HOLVYW TvO01

OIHO ¥vis
LNIWIDHOLANT MV

Y03 A3
OIHO ¥v1s

i d03 A3M
ANNOODV XVL S3VS
LNNODOVY AQOLSND ONd
ANNd ALIALLOY 33A0TdINT
OIHO "vLS
a7H4
g7Hd
gTH4
g71Hd
8044
IHANN ASX-LODV LNVHOY3N

L1IMHVYIN ASNOIW
LININWNHLSNI

220z ‘0t ¥IEIILdIS 40 SV
SINJLSIANI AMNSVYIHL 40 AYOLNIANI
ALIMOHLNY LISNVYL TYNOIDIY ANVIIATTO ¥ILYINO

ccocr/e/ol
ceie/e/ol
¢eoz/e/ol
§20¢/0e/6
Gcoc/gers
€2y
6202/L2/9
Geozg/elis
§2oc/oLe
¥202/82/9
ceoz/eiol

¢coe/e/ol
cc0e/e/ol

2eozre/ol
¢20c/e/oL

ceae/e/ol
€eoe/e/ol
zeaeie/ol
ceoe/e/ol
2coz/elolL
§¢0z/Lei9
§cocrecty
Geoz/ielL
¥20zZ/0E/6
veoe/tie
¢coe/e/oL

ceaz/e/ol
31va

ALRINLYIN 3SVYHOUN

¢coe/oele
£eoe/oe/e
¢eoz/oL/e
€202/0¢e/6
ccoe/oels
ceoe/eziL
2eoe/Lero
€ecoevels
ceociviie
¢coe/ge/e
¢e0z/oe/s

ANN-4 HOLWIN TYO0T Tv.LO0L

aNN4d HOLYIN VOO

QNNd INJNIOHUO4NI MV IVLOL

¢eoe/oe/s
ceoz/oe/s

2coz/oes
ceozioele

€20¢/0€/6
TAAVALN] )
¢eoe/oe/e
ceog/oe/s
¢c0z/0e/6
[AAVAFRAE]
cooereery
ceoe/Lell
Le0z/0csB
Leoe/Lie
2202/0e/6

ANNd INTJWIDHOINI Myl
AaNNAd JONVHNSNI TYLO0L

ONNdJ 3ONYYNSNI

AN TYHENI9 TVYLOL

ONN4 TYY3INID

aNNd ANJNIHILIY OGNOE TVLOL

[4404{0[3]
a1va

aNNd IN3W3YILIY aNog
anNnd



%869°C

%8L'C
%86°C
%SGE0
%SY'T
%8L°0
%C9'E
%S8°C
%S2'¢
%960
%0v'E
%GLE
%0€' ¥
%L0°E
%05°¢
%SL'C
%li'e
%£9'C
%002
%SL°L

%Lk

%¥E0
%EE0
%LS0
%EY 0
%0L° )
%G8}
%9G6°C
%S8°2
%SE0

%28'C

%86°C
%SE°0

QI3IA - ALRMNLYIN LSTIHILNI
3OVHIAV Ol SAva a3Inyoov

kg

el
908
LGg
12314
66
664
(A%
169

9ee
c0ol
el

(74

956

14

344

0ss
Z8s
862
vel
9ce
vSL
c6e

€
1

JOVHIAY

665°6£8% ZV6'669'S.LES

976'62€$

0%

0%
618'€2$
80€°LE$
Z65'91$
vSe'cLS
8EL'GH$
LS6'0LS
£85'G1S
981218
0%
GBL'ELS
629'0¢$
FANSWNAY
6v8'829$
L19'08$
181 LS
8£0'CS

008248

(443
AT
118'v$
6eTs
98GC1L%
662'v1%
viLo'zrs
0%

0%

0%

0%
0%

£00'699'051%
0/87928°0/% €
Z80'LLYS €
G67'886'vS €81
80G'G65'vS  SB0L
000'000'6$ 166
LEP'GE8'YS 662
000'000'6$  SBOL
GRL'VE8'YS G601
000'000'c$ £9¢
000'000'S$ 92/
000'000'6$  S60L
610'688'v$ 69¢
000'000's3 B0
z18'126'v$ 992
801'226'v$ 0.2
000'000'6$  S60L
¥66'6.8'v$ 919
006'L¥6'vS oLy
7.8'v08'61$
06.'66v% $601
000°'000'2¢  g601
000'000°2¢  S601
000'000's$ 560!
G/E'6Ye'LS #GP
GE'GP8 LS €16
861 v66'v$ €i5
00.'6% €
PiV'PLO LS €
g6e'1ze'Le
ZeT'6LT LS ¢
£91'z28% €
IVdIONIYd SAva
JvioL Wy3L

Z 40 g abey

OIHO 30 31v1s
ANVE AN
S3LNO3S dOLTHH
SNVI0DIN 13411S
SALRINDIS JOLTIH
S3ILIFIND3S dOLTIH
SNVIOJIN 1341LS
SNVYIO0JIN T33ILs
S3LI™NO3S dOLTHH
S3ILI-KND3S dOLTTHH
SNYIOJIN 1341LS
S3LIFEND3S dOLTIHH
SNYIOJIN 134iLS
SALIFNOIS dOLTIH
S3LLIFIND3S dOLTHH
SNYIOOIN 134i1S
S3ILIKNO3S dOLTIH
S3LIKENO3S dOLTH

SNVIOOIN 134118
SNAYIOOIN 134iLS
SNVIOJIN 1331LS
SNYIODIN 1341LS
SNYIO0DIN 1331LS
SNVYIODIN 134118
S3LLI-FND3S dOLTTH
MNVE ONd
ANVE A3M

OIHO 40 31v1S
MNVE ATA

NOILNLILSNI

OIHO ¥vis 2c0e/eol

H03 A3 ¢coe/e/ol
49 Wolj g2 MNVEANYT "3IAVE 2202/2e/T)
49 Woly AYNSYIHL SN ye0e/siiLL
49 Woj 943544 yeoe/eere

49 wol} g044 £coc/eels

49 Wol} g3 Geoe/ee/s

49 Wol g044 veoc/e/e
g1H4 ¥20e/82/8

g7H4 £c0e/8e/8

g1H4 §20z/0L/B
dONVYEANVY1 ¥3AVE €20cvely
g1HA §20¢/0¢e/9

d0 SNXILYN geoe/Lere

dO XNVHANYT H3AVE €eoz/LLe
g7H4 S20TivLiy
JLON AHNSVYIYL SN €202/0¢it L
JLON AMNSYIYL SN £€cie/oery
VIAINS ¥20cvie

8044 ¥2oz/siy

g7H4 ¥¢02/0¢e/8

g7H4 ¥c02/92/8

g7H4 yeQe/8e/e

g7H4 ¥c02/52/6

FLON AHNSVYIYL SN y20z/oely
LNNOODY AQOLSND ONd ccoe/e/ol
HO3 A ¢cozie/ol

OIHO ¥v1s ceaeieiol

d03 A3M ceocie/ol

LNIWNHLISNI 3lva

2202 ‘0¢ ¥3I8INI1d3S 4O SV

SLNINLSIANI AUNSVYIHL 40 AYOLNIANI

ALIHOHLNY LISNVYL TYNOIDIY ANVIIATTO HILVIHO

€202/0e/6
€20z/0L/6
¢c0e/eels
L20C/SLLL
ceoz/9e/8
ceaeilell
2202/ee/S
Leoeserel
2coeiog/8
¢c0c/0e/8
¢c0z/oe/6
ceoz/ee/L
2¢0¢/0e/9
¢coei/Lels
ceoe/et/s
ceociviiy
ceoc/eeie
¢eoz/ele

Leog/vie
120c/Siv
leoec/oe/e
beoe/oe/e
¢coe/8e/e
ceoe/seie
ceoelel/s
¢eoz/oe/6
A4V 4/

€202/0e/6
220e/0e/e

dlvd

ALRINLYIN 3SYHOYNd

SANNd 71V TV.LOL

ONNd INYISTH TV.LOL

GNNd IAYIS3Y

aNNd TVLIHYI VIY TV10L

GNN4 TvLIdVO Y.Ly
ONNd NOISN3d TV.LOL

GNNd NOISN3d
anNnd



z80'Zves

§£5°681°L1S
juelisinay puog

00°00£°€£8'L1% | 00°0SE'v0L'0LS | 00°000°5E5'68  00°05€'69L°L8 | 00'0Se'69L'L8 | 00708 00°0$£'691°L$  00°000'0SP 2¥8
00°005'1LSS'L 000S.'6.¢2'L 00°000'000'L 00'052'6/¢2 00'052'6.¢2 000 00'052'6.¢2 00'000'0€0'L L
00°0S2'009'L 00'629'46¢€'L 00°000'66L'L 00'529'20¢2 00°629°20C 000 00°529'20Z 00°000's0}'8
00'0S.°26¥'y 00'6/E'800'y 00°000'02S’E 00'6/e'98p 00°6/¢£'08% 000 00'5.¢£'98Y 00°000'SS¥'81
00°056'628'L 00'G.¥'288'L 00°000'6eS'L 00'GLY'ibL 00'S.¥' Lyl 000 00GLv'LpL 00°000'6.5'9
00°052'66E'2 00°62L'ZPe'T 00°000's82' 00'GelL'.S 00'seL'.s 000 0o'szl.s 00'000'682'¢
FAAITA FAAVTALRTAN 22024z ) [AATAIN A raATAINL: ] 2z0zZiLi9 [AAVTAITL:] Leoziiey

juswalinbay | puswalinbay Ja1qefey je1qeked puaswaiinbay jo1qehed fe1qehed Buipueysing

199Q iejo 921A198 148(] fedioutid }S2.9}U] 92138 1q8(] jediound }s249}U] jedioulid |ej04

2202 ‘'0€ ¥38WILd3S 4O SV

SNLVY.LS ANV 3TNA3HOS FD0IAY3S 1930

ALIMOHLNV LISNVYL TYNOIDIY ANVIIATTIO ¥ILYIYO

paIiNbay opISy 188 AIUFUON

(zz0z 10) 8pisy 198) duejeg Juaiing

0€0zZ 2eq
1202 28Q
920z 08Q
520z 08Q
220z 98q
ayeq
Aumew
leuid

spuog jejol
'AoY XB $8|eg-6L07 SelssS
‘ABY XB| $8[8S-gL07 SoLeg
"A9Y XB] S8[BS-GL(0Z SouUeS

‘A xel s8leS-yy 0T s8les

"A9Y XB] S3|BS-ZL0Z S8H8s
spuog



%€9°0 %¥Z'0
%ST0 %¥9°0 %880 140’8002  2PlL'98.'v8LS
%100 %610 %L70 ££9'6€$ IO TAATA
%100 %900 %120 145'22% 2€.'198'692¢$
%100 %S00 %8L°0 6SE'6ES €81'8/8'¢42$
%100 %S00 %610 TLo'0vs TR TANARAS
%100 %S00 %610 rLL'LES LE2'95E'EvTS
%100 %G00 %610 869'0c$ 880'88.'88¢$
%100 %S00 %810 60€'LG$ 8L€'799'/82%
%100 %900 %020 B£6'CES 8./8'266'L6¢$
%100 %L0°0 %020 8EQ'LES 0./6'0€9'9z2$
%100 %800 %CC 0 zes'ies 296'10L'€€T$
%100 %600 %LZ0 £88'6€$ LL0'8G'L¥TS
%100 %0L°0 %¥Z'0 v¥8'STS LSL'GL6'LYTS
# 13IA #Q13IA aidlA aaNyvza JONVIvE
13MHVIN - QUVANYLS ZIOVHIAY  L1SIHILNI JOVYHIAVY

YA A

%620

%SG6°0

%8L'¢C
%B80C
%921
%L1
%050
%010
%010
%100
%100
# Q13IA

JANAINOW QUVANYLS

pisIA AeQ £ pund Aeuopy Ainseal] g sienba piois 1aen #

‘sjiig Aunseau ] yuow g Joj sp|aik Jusjeainba uodnoo abesane Buinop #

%¥i0
%011 %EeC L
%9G°¢C %69°¢C
%60°C %0¢'¢
%¥oL %80°¢
%9Z'L %¥O’L
%880 %S0°L
%E90 %850
%ey 0 %EY 0
%ST0 %S0
%910 %610
# Q13lA anziA

JOVHIAY

(4414

2207 ‘0¢ ¥IGINI LIS HONOYHL 31va OL ¥Y3A
JONVINEOJHId LNJIWLSTANI 40 AUVININNS

ALIMOHLNY LISNVYL TYNOIO3Y ANVIIATTIO ¥ILYIYD

XAANI (YIANN) YIAO SAT3IA IOVHIAY VLY

86/'€0L'T$

0vZ'805%
£61'66/%
£Ze'8yss
19€'95¢%
990'¢8Z$
805'60L$
v6E ' 7o
08¢'t$
19¢'/¢%
G3NYVv3
183HILNI

€6Z'v96'L2E

LL8'1pE'E9ES
6.6'£89'05¢$
8€8'85¥'65¢€$
691'6.6'65¢%
879'505'9res
v08'£9€'862¢
059'51£'982¢
96£'0.¥'00€$
225'yrS'98c%
3ONVIvVE
JOVHIAY

J1vd O1 "v3A

d3aW303d

HIgWIAON

§380100

d3gW31d3s

lsnony

Alnr

aNnr

AVIN

Y

HOYVIN

AdvNye3d

AGYNNYT
HLINOW




¢ 40 | abed

0¥’ 0€% 31vad Ol W¥v3A LZoz
86'€5¢9 31vd Ol ¥V3A 220e
0c'ess ¢cl¢ J39N31d3s
¢E'C6% OIHOYV1S
86°0% LNNODJV d3IAMS MNVE ATM
ANNd INIW3IOHO4NT MY
8E6L8 VLS JLvQ OL ¥v3A L2og
EV'¥Z8'eSS$ 31vQ OL ¥VIA 2202
£6°180'7LS 2¢0c ¥3aN3aLd3s
6180 VLS OIHOYYLS
GNNd IONVHNSNI
£9°6G8E'LLS 31vQ3 Ol ¥Vv3IA 1202
LLi8'eeys J1vQa OL ¥V3A Zeoe
£9'€91'68$ ¢20¢ J¥38N31d38
91¢s ANNODIV dIIMS MNVE ATM-LNNODDV INVHONINW
gTLie'es LNNOJOV AQOLSND ONd
00'052'9% 8044
00'055'8% , g1H4
G9'G6$ . INNODJV d33MS MNVE ATN
LL€25'29% OIHOYV1S
88'vZy'es LNNODJV XV.L SITYS-NOLONILNNH
aNNd Tvd3IN3D
86 ¥¥v'eCs 31vd OL ¥V3A 1202
ze'8GL'veS 31VQ OL "¥VY3A ¢20e
v1'190'GL$ ¢c0Z ¥3dW31d3s
vL'19061%

LIMHVIN ASNOW NOLDNILNNH
aNNd LN3JIN3HIL3IS anNod
¢20¢ ¥3gIN31d3s
(SISVE HSVD) SONINYVI LNIWLSIANI NO L¥OdTY
ALIMOHLNY LISNVYL TYNOIDIY ANVIIATTO HILVIND



0c'69r$
v’ LOY' V.S
LLSLP'OES
1'%
00°004'G$
05225'vL$
06°/8L'9L$

96'6$
vZ'98
19°0$
1908

€6°45.%

88'9v9'6$

v6'LLG'C$
890%
CTAINARA

LLPYL00LS
8.'898'¥Z8%
29'€09'9€T$
vZELS
00°05.'9v$
000vL'6L%
8£°00L'0LL$

¢ jo g abed

41lva Ol "v3dA Leoe
31vQ Ol "v3aA €20z
¢C0¢ J3adNILdES

31VQ3 Ol "v3A 120Z
31v0a OL UVv3A €202

¢c0¢ J3g31d3as

J1vQ3 OL "UV3A 1202
31vd Ol ¥V3A 2202
¢¢0Z Y38gNg1d3S

31va OL ¥v3A L2oe
31va OL ¥V3A 220¢
¢C0C ¥3dIN3Ld3S

2202 ¥3dINI1d3s
(Sisvd HSVD) SONINYYI INIWLSIANI NO LHOJIYH
ALIYOHLNY LISNVYL TYNOIDIY ANVIIATTD ¥ILVIND

LNNODDV d33IMS HNVE AT
g7H4
g7H4
g7H4

QNN4d TVLIdvD V1Y

LIAEYIN AINOW MNVE AIM
LINNODOV ALIAILOY JFIAOTHING

LNNODDV d33IMS HUNVE ATA
OIHOYV1S
ONNd NOISN3d

LNNODJV dIIMS MNVE ATA
4044
g1H4

HOLVIN TvOOT-OIHOXYLS
aNN4d HOLVIAN V00T



%ET' L

€GC'P96°L2E%

161'€0.'2$
665'6£8%
(rss'ezLs)

£62'/86'L$
Flva ol
VA 2202

¥5'065'vZeS
€8'252°286°L$
S0°072‘805%

6G°825'€LLS
€€'129'995¢
LLTYTYLLS
ve'LCS

LESLTVLLS

¢ jo ¢ abed

%69'C 'SINIWLISIANI NO A13IA IOVHIAY
L/8'LPE'E9ES (1S02) FONVIVE LNIWLSIANI IOVHIAY
0vZ'805$ ‘Q3NYVY3 INOONI LSIHILNI
665'6£8% 'ONIANT
(665'6£8%) 'ONINNIDZg
'LSIYILINI g3NYUDDY
0¥Z'806$ (S1SV8 HSVD) GIAIFDIY LSIHIINI
y3gWald3s

31vd Ol "v3A 1202
31vQ Ol Yv3A 2eoz

€207 ¥3anN31d3s SANN4 TV v1iolL

31va OL ¥v3IA L20C
31vQ Ol ¥v3A 22oc
¢20¢ J349iN31d3s
LNNOJDV d33MS MNVE AT
OIHOYVLS
aNNd 3AY3S3N
¢20c ¥3gin3aid3s
(SISvE HSVD) SONINYYI INIWLSIANI NO LHOdIN
ALIMOHLNY LISNVYHL TYNOIDIY ANVIIAT IO ¥ILYIND



Lie
182

)
ALMNLIVIA
FOVHIAY

%69°C
%E9T
%950
%GE0
%862
%SE0
%920
aTaA
IOVHIAY

%00°001
%95 0¥
%¥S'9
%cCeC
%Sy Ly
%€0°0
%0L°€
Tviol

40 LN3OY3d

LZ€°116'9.¢8%
000'0¥L'251L$
000'000°52$
612'82L'8¢
£€.'692'8LL%
696'6L1$
906'C59'L1$
LNNOINV
30V4d

Zv6'669'GLES
€LV'T6E'CGLS
€5¥'285'ves
61.'82.'8%
€€L'692'8/1%
696'6LL$
G6S'9EQ'L1LS
IVdIONIdd

2202 '0€ WIEgNILLTS SV

OIM04L¥0d INJIWLSIANI 40 NOILISOdINOD

Ol]OJHOd JUAISIAUY |B}O L.
SBIJIN08S JUSWUIBA0S) 'S
Jaded [eoiewiwon)

1UnoooYy ajey Jipaln sbululeg
OIyO Jeyg

UN0ooY deamg xueg Aoy
JUNo2OYY 13BN AsUop
juswinysuj



*UOIBLWIOH] [RUOIIPPE 1O}
08-0T0T "ON UOHNIOSY $331SN.L JO PJeog PUe $Z0 8INPad0Id dAeNsIUIUPY (Adljod [9AR1L) Aoyiny JIsuel ] [euoiSsy puedAB|D J93B3.D B3 40 suopie|ngay pue sajny payIpoD 8yl Jo 959 Ja3dey) 03 JajaJ 35eald

TI0Z "LT Y2JBIN Palep ABUULIA JuBig "y 03 UCIUIDO AJOSIADY JJRISUOISSILWOD ST 0140
80-TTOZ J3qUINN UOILIEQ LOISSILWOD $213F OIYO
0202 '9 AeiN paiep (suleyjy 12397 - WOQ) pJojuag Bupy 1AIBYS 01 LOIUIAO AIOSIADY JJEIS UOISSIWLIOD SIIYI3 OIy0
T-¥2T0-INI-E00T J3QWINN UOIUIG(D JRULIOJU| UDISSILILUOD $IILIT OO
(3) pue {Q)€0'Z0T SUORIBS BPOD pasIABY OIYO
UM soueljdwiod u) 3q 0} sjenpialpul sjqestdde 10y papiaoad Suiag st uonewWIoul SIY L

‘310N
a8paH jonyg jueg siJeH ONg
JessiSay puog UO|ISIA %404 M3N JO yjueg
SJUBLUISBAUL-OIYO YV LS
JaImIBpUn
JUNO2DY X 53jes pue JudWalIBY puog jueg uoydununy
IUN020Y M04IST RAYL Y3
PJB2 1PaJD pue JUNOdJY [BIPOISHY Sueg INd
S821AJBS upjueq uie sueg Aay
diysuoneas jo aunjen uonNIIsY| eldURUL Huey
2202 ‘0E Jaquwiaidas jo sy

sdiysuoneay [eiueuly pue Jupjueg
Aoyiny yisues] jeuoiSsy pueleas)) Jajessn



i | Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority

2023 DRAFT

Board and Committee Meeting Schedule

January 10 — Committees
January 20 — Board Working Session
January 31 — Board

February 14 — Committees
February 22 — Audit Committee
February 28 — Board

March 7 — Committees
March 21 — Board and Annual Meeting*

April 4 — Committees
April 18 — Board

May 2 — Committees
May 9 — Audit Committee
May 16 — Board

June 6 — Committees
June 27 — Board

July 11 — Committees
July 25 — Board

August 8 — Committees
August 15 — Audit Committee
August 29 — Board

September 12 — Committees
September 26 — Board

October 17 — Committees
October 31 — Board

November 2 — Audit Committee
November 14 — Committees
November 21 — Board

December 5 — Committees
December 19 — Board

*Board Meeting and Annual Meeting on the same day.

2023 Conferences

APTA Legislative — March 12-14
APTA Mobility — April 23-26
APTA Rail — June 11-15

APTA Transit Board Members — TBD — usually in July

OPTA-TBD

APTA TRANSform Conference & Expo — October 8-11





